
 

 

 

 

 
DATE:           April 30, 2018 
 
TO:    ECC Executive Committee Board Members  
  
FROM:  Shane Turney, President  
  
RE:    Executive Committee Board Agenda Packet  
________________________________________________________________________  
  
Please make plans to attend the Eastern Carolina Council Executive Committee Board meeting 
to be held on Thursday, May 10, 2018 at the Eastern Carolina Council offices, 233 Middle 
Street, Second Floor Conference Room, OMarks Building, New Bern, NC.  
  
Dinner will commence at 6:00 p.m. (DINNER Complimentary). The meeting will commence 
promptly at 6:30 p.m.  
  
Board Members are welcome to view the check register.  You may contact Jenny Miller, Finance 
Director to do this.  
  
If you have not yet participated in an orientation session with the staff, we would encourage
you to contact Executive Director Matthew Livingston to do so.  252.638.3185 x 3005 or 
mlivingston@eccog.org. We can either do it individually or we can do it at 5  
PM before the 6 PM Meeting.  Please contact to schedule.  

If you need additional information, do not hesitate to call Eastern Carolina Council 252.638.3185 
extension 3005.  

We look forward to seeing you there. 

 



 

 

 

  

Executive Committee Board Meeting 
6:30 p.m. - Thursday, May 10, 2018  

Second Floor Conference Room 

233 Middle Street, New Bern, NC 

  

  

1. Welcome, Invocation, and Call to Order ‐ Welcome any New Board Members 

 

2. Adopt Agenda – Shane Turney, President 
 

3. Consent Agenda ‐ Shane Turney, President  

a. General Membership Board Minutes—March 8, 2018 

b. Financial Statement 
 

4. Budget and Audit Committee Report ‐ Edward Riggs, Treasurer    

 

5. Finance—Budget Amendment ‐  Edward Riggs, Treasurer and Jenny Miller, Finance 

Director 
 

6. Budget Presentation – Jenny Miller, Finance Director 

 

7. NCARCOG Intra‐Regional Cooperative Agreement – Matthew Livingston, Executive Director 

 

8. Regional Legislative Agenda  ‐ Matthew Livingston, Executive Director 

 

9. Discussion of Future Networking Events – Matthew Livingston, Executive Director 

 

10. Executive Director Report 
 

11. Member Comments  
 

12. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda 

2



 

 

 

  

Executive Committee Board Meeting 
6:30 p.m. - Thursday, March 8, 2018 

 Second Floor Conference Room  
233 Middle Street, New Bern, NC   

  

Minutes 

Executive Committee in Attendance: 

Jay Bender 

Roland Best 

Chris Roberson 

Robert Cavanaugh 

Jesse Dowe 

Bennie Heath 

Joe Gurley 

Pat Prescott 

Edward Riggs 

Arthur Robinson 

Shane Turney 

 

General Membership in Attendance: 

Billy Whitford   

Joe Scott 

 

ECC Staff in Attendance: 

Matthew Livingston 

Jenny Miller 

David Rosado 

Patrick Flanagan 

Leighann Morgan 

 

Guest in Attendance: 

Robbie Bittner, RSM 

 

1. Welcome, Invocation, and Call to Order – The meeting was called to order by President 

Shane Turney at 6:38 p.m. Pat Prescot offered the invocation. 

 

2. Adopt Agenda ‐ Shane Turney, President  

Bob Cavanaugh motioned to adopt the agenda, seconded by Roland Best, motion carried   

unanimously. 

 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes – March 8, 2018

3



 

3. Consent Agenda ‐ Shane Turney, President  

a. Executive Committee Board Meeting Minutes – November 9, 2017 
b. Financial Statement 

Pat Prescott motioned to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Bennie Heath, motioned 
carried unanimously. 
 

4. Budget and Audit Committee Report  ‐ Edward Riggs, Treasurer, reported that the 
Budget & Audit Committee met on Thursday, March 8th at 5:00 p.m. to view the financials, 
audit contract, grant funding, indirect cost and the first glance at the budget.  
 

5. Audit Contract for FY 18/19 – Jenny Miller, Finance Director, introduced Robbie Bittner, 
Senior Manager from RSM. Robbie communicated matters related to the planned scope and 
timing of the audit contract for year end of June 30, 2018. The preliminary audit field work has 
been scheduled for the week of June 11st and the final field work commencing the week of 
August 20th.  
Ed Riggs motioned to approve the audit contract for fiscal year 18/19, seconded by Jay Bender, 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. Resolution to become member of the Municipal Insurance Trust of North Carolina – 
Jenny Miller, Finance Director, stated by becoming members the cost of insurance will reduce 
by $6,000 yearly.  
Roland Best motioned to approve resolution, seconded by Pat Prescott, motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

7. Record Retention and Disposition Schedule – Jenny Miller, Finance Director 
Bennie Heath motioned to approve record retention schedule, seconded by Roland Best, motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
8. New Member – Matthew Livingston, Executive Director, stated he conducted a retreat 
with the Town of Snow Hill, which helped encourage the town to become members. The town 
has paid the full ECC dues and seek approval of membership. 
Jay Bender motioned to approve membership, seconded by Pat Prescott, motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
9. Staff Request ‐  Matthew Livingston, Executive Director, requested a 5% pay 
increase and retroactive pay back to November 7th, 2017, for Chad Davis, Community 
Planner, for completing his ACIP designation. This request is based on a precedent 
increased offered to an employee in 2016 for the same designation who is no longer 
employed with ECC. Patrick Flanagan, Planning Director, stated this is a stringent award 
in continuing education and will help the department with competing with grants in the 
region. 
Bennie Heath motioned to approve request for increased compensation due to new 
credentials, seconded by Chris Roberson, motioned carried unanimously. 
 

4



 

10. Personnel Policy Pay and Classification Plan Report – Matthew Livingston, 
Executive Director, stated the need to upgrade ECC personnel policy and to have a pay 
classification study completed. The market has changed since the last update and this 
will help ECC be more competitive in hiring and retaining employees. The plan should 
be completed in the next 45 days. 
 

11. ECC Legislative Lunch and Learn Event Update  ‐ Matthew Livingston, Executive 
Director, stated he was excited about the Legislative Lunch and Learn Event on March 14th, at 
the Flame Catering. Matthew  stated he would like to start a committee to help plan this event 
in the future, to get more people’s voices, guidance to grow and improve the event.  The 
Executive Committee requested a list of suggested topics to be emailed out.  
 

12. Visioning Session – Matthew Livingston stated that ECC is conducting a  Visioning 
Session on April 5th at Spirit Center of Excellence. Tours of the Spirit Aerosystem will start at 4. 
This session will help construct a foundation and to provide direction of ECC.  Patrick Flanagan, 
Planning Director, stated the session will help ECC better serve its members. Dinner will be 
served at 5 and the brainstorming will start sharply at 6:00 p.m. Invite will be sent next week.  
 

13. Executive Director Report ‐  Matthew Livingston, Executive Director, stated he has 
conducted presentations about the CEDS and wants to conduct more, at least in every county.  
He then referred everyone to the update in the agenda packet. 
 

14. Member Comments 
Shane Turney stated that if members have not been through a New Member Orientation to 
contact Executive Director to set one up. Also to think of the COG not “What have they done for 
me?, but to think “What have I asked the COG to do?” 
 
Roland Best praised the Ethics Training offered by ECC for newly elected officials. 
 
Pat Prescott stated Pamlico County Girls and Boys Basketball team will be going to the state 
conference. 
 
Bennie Heath stated Greene County Boys Basketball team will also be heading to state 
conference. 
 
Arthur Robinson stated the Town of Hookerton has opened their new town hall. 
 
15. Adjournment 
Jay Bender motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Roland Best, meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
_________________________________    ________________________________ 
Shane Turney, President        Matthew Livingston, Executive Director 

5



 

 

 

  

 

3. Consent Agenda 

b. Financials 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



 

 

 

  

 

The North Carolina Association of Regional Council  

INTRA-REGIONAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERSHIP OF THE NORTH CAROLINA 
ASSOCIATION OF REGIONAL COUNCIL DIRECTORS, INC. (A NC NON-PROFIT 
CORPORATION), HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE NC ASSOCIATION OF REGIONAL 
COUNCILS, ESTABLISHES POLICIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ISSUE OF TERRITORIAL INTEGRITY 
AND JOINT AND MUTUAL CONSULTATION AND AGREEMENT ON COOPERATIVE PROJECTS 
SPANNING THE BOUNDARIES OF SUB-STATE REGIONS IN NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, The North Carolina Association of Regional Councils is the designated regional 
forum for North Carolina ' s Regional Planning Commissions and Councils of Government 
formed pursuant to (GS 143-341 or).  

WHEREAS, North Carolina’s Regional Councils are charged with the mission of delivering 
regional services to member units of local government; 

WHEREAS, in the course of carrying out their work programs, North Carolina’s Regional 
Councils may share resources and capacity that will enhance the statewide delivery of 
local, regional, state or federal services;  

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the North Carolina Association of Regional Councils to 
promote a defined set of policies to provide a protocol for statewide service delivery, 
including jointly sponsored and executed projects and defining issues of regional 
importance;  

 

 

7. NCARCOG Intra-Regional 
Cooperative Agreement 

13



 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the North Carolina Association of Regional Councils hereby establishes a policy 
that enhances its value by sharing member resources and capacity to deliver 
services to the State of North Carolina. 

2. That the North Carolina Association of Regional Councils hereby endorses Regional 
Councils, or their affiliated or subsidiary organizations, to carry out activities in regions 
outside of their boundaries with consent when those services are to the benefit of the 
region and the state.  That the terms "affiliated organization" and " subsidiary 
organization" shall be generally construed to mean any legal entity, created under 
any state or federal statute, formed for the purpose of carrying out and fulfilling a 
program of work, which organization or entity is housed within, is provided staff by, or 
shares more than a majority of its membership or board members with a Regional 
Council as denoted above.  

3. This agreement does not supplant previous agreements. 

4. The services provided as presented in Attachment A are subject to Change by the 
individual Regional Councils. 

5. That this resolution shall be in effect from and after the date of its passage. 

ADOPTED this     day of     2018. 

 

Region P: Eastern Carolina Council 

 

 

 

By:       

         , Chairperson 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:    _______ 

           

 

 

14



 

 

 

  

Region P Priorities: 

Carteret, Craven, Duplin, Greene, Jones, Lenoir, Onslow, Pamlico, and 
Wayne 

 

 

 

*** As approved at March 14, 2018 Legislative Luncheon 

 

1. HWY 17 Projects/Improvements

2. School Safety

3. Opioid Crisis

4. Re‐Entry Council Expansion

5. Funding for Water & Sewer Infrastructure

8. Regional Legislative Agenda

15



 

 

 

 
 

 In April, held region wide visioning session at the Global Trans‐park in Kinston.  The purpose 
of this meeting was for ECC to get a broad overview of those challenges and needs that all 
our communities are facing.  One of our objectives was to get a broad representative view 
of the entire region. We believe this was accomplished, as the meeting was well attended 
with participants representing all nine counties.  Staff is compiling the results of the session 
and will be presented at the next General Membership Board meeting in June. 
 

 The General Membership Board Meeting in June, will focus on taking those needs and 
challenges and developing a strategy on how the Eastern Carolina Council can address 
specific areas of concern or challenges within the communities.  The information we are 
gathering will then be used to develop a five‐year strategic action plan. 
 

 Working with Hillary Sherman and the EDA to put on a regional Economic Development 
Summit.  At this time, no date has been set but we are thinking late August or September. 
 

 Ongoing grant administration with Project Volt or New Bern City Market.  The bids will be 
open in May and awarded to the lowest‐most responsive bidder. 
 

 ECC is also expected to administer a grant for James Sprunt Community College for the 
expansion of their new Nursing Training facility. 
 

 ECC is assisting with grant applications through EDA for the Gallants Channel Initiative.  This 
is the site that has been acquired and considered to be the future home of a greatly 
expanded NC Maritime Museum.  We are working on round two of the grant process.  
 

 Submitted a PARTF Grant application for the Town of Hookerton on May 1st . 
 

 Assisted Morehead City with their PARTF application and completed their Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan. 
 

 Held Quarterly Managers Meeting on May 2nd, the major topic was water and sewer and 
grant revenues both current and expected future. 
 

 Created a Legislative Results Committee, purpose of the committee is to maximize our 
effectiveness as a region working with our legislators.  We  have a regional Legislative 
agenda but this committee can help with all regional legislative affairs and will help plan 
and coordinate our Annual Legislative Lunch and Learn. 
 

 On May 30th the Statewide Regional Directors Association will have a legislative day 
beginning at 8:30 a.m. in Raleigh at the legislative building and concluding with a reception 
from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. at the NC Museum of History.  There are a number of regional 
issues and bills that we are working on as an association, that if passed will benefit Eastern 
North Carolina.  
 

 The Director will be attending the Annual Southeastern Regional Directors Institute and 
New Directors training from May 18‐22 in Kingsport, Tennessee.   

10. Executive Director Report

16


	1 Memo
	2 Agenda
	3 Minutes
	3 Financials
	3b Financials
	7 NCARCOG
	8 Legislative Agenda
	10 ED Report



